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PART I

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. When used in this Report, the
words �expect,� �anticipate,� �estimate,� �believe,� �intend,� �plan,� and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These are
statements that relate to future periods and include statements as to the features, benefits, performance and utility of our current and future
products, services and technology, the expected benefits of our products and services to our customers, including reduced operating costs and
expansion of metropolitan networks, our competitive position, our research and development efforts, customer mix, plans to expand sales
organizations, our strategy for protecting our proprietary rights, the adequacy of our facilities, the impact and timing of current and future legal
proceedings, the potential offer to repurchase certain options and shares received upon exercise of certain options, our strategic investments, our
expectations regarding net income or losses, trends in average selling prices, gross margins and revenues, changes in product mix, inventory
levels, the adequacy of allowances for doubtful accounts, expectations regarding expenses, cost of revenues and sources of revenues, expected
stock-based compensation expenses, expected cost structure reductions as a result of restructuring, statements regarding our critical accounting
policies, the adequacy of capital resources and expected variations in capital requirements, expectations regarding capital expenditures and
growth of operations and infrastructure, strategic investments, plans to expand sales organizations, expectations regarding the development and
maintenance of strategic distribution relationships and our exchange risk management strategy. Forward-looking statements involve risks,
uncertainties and assumptions. The actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of
many factors, including, but not limited to, our ability to successfully bring future products to market, gain market share and compete against
established companies in our market, the impact of alternative technological advances and competitive products, our dependence on large orders
from a small number of customers, our ability to protect our intellectual property rights, our dependence upon single or limited sources for
components and upon a single manufacturer, our ability to develop and maintain strategic relationships, and those discussed in the section
entitled �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results
and Market Price of Our Stock.� Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect
management�s opinions only as of the date hereof. Riverstone Networks, Inc. (the �Company,� �Riverstone,� �us� or �we�) undertakes no obligation to
revise or publicly release the results of any revision to these forward-looking statements. Readers should carefully review the risk factors
described in this document as well as in other documents the Company files from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including the Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q to be filed by the Company in fiscal year 2003.

ITEM 1.    Business

Overview

Separation from Cabletron

We were previously a subsidiary of Cabletron Systems, Inc. We completed our initial public offering on February 22, 2001. On August 6, 2001,
Cabletron distributed all of its shares of our common stock to its stockholders and we ceased to be a subsidiary of Cabletron. On the same date,
Cabletron merged its subsidiary Enterasys Networks, Inc. into itself and renamed itself Enterasys Networks, Inc.

We were initially incorporated as Yago Systems, Inc. in September 1996 in the state of Delaware. Yago was acquired by Cabletron in March
1998 and became a wholly owned subsidiary of Cabletron. In April 2000 Cabletron changed Yago�s name to Riverstone Networks, Inc., and in
June 2000 we entered into agreements with Cabletron, Aprisma Management Technologies, Inc., Enterasys and GlobalNetwork Technology
Services, Inc. relating to the separation of our business from Cabletron.
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Business

We are a leading provider of metropolitan area networking solutions that enable service providers to convert raw bandwidth into profitable
services over legacy and next-generation infrastructures. Our routers are specifically designed for the metropolitan area network, or MAN,
which encompasses service providers, the Internet infrastructure connecting these service providers with their customers and the Internet
backbone within the geographic area of a city. Service providers today are seeking to build scalable networks to deliver new revenue-generating
services to their end-customers. Our products combine carrier-class routing features and interface versatility with important service creation
technologies such as Multiprotocol Label Switching, or MPLS, for layer-2 virtual private networks or VPNs, bandwidth management, dynamic
provisioning, hardware-based accounting data collection, and quality of service.

Historically the public network infrastructure, including MANs, was traditional telephone networks optimized for transporting voice traffic.
With the advent of the Internet, these networks began to carry data traffic in addition to voice traffic. The Internet is a network of public and
private networks interconnected using Internet Protocol, or IP, that allow millions of users worldwide to share information and conduct
electronic commerce. Since inception, the Internet and IP traffic have continued to grow exponentially, creating a need for service providers to
build IP-centric networks optimized to carry data traffic. In addition to the rapid growth of the Internet, end-user demand has developed beyond
basic bandwidth and connectivity to sophisticated business applications and advanced services. Service providers are seeking to build networks
with advanced capabilities to deliver these services to their customers in a cost effective manner. Our products are built to meet the needs of the
growing MAN and offer service providers an optimized solution for the cost-effective delivery of advanced applications and services to their
customers.

Our target customers include communications service providers worldwide, which include local exchange carriers, long distance carriers,
Internet service providers, metropolitan service providers, content hosting providers, and cable operators. We sell and market our products
primarily through our direct sales organization, original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and value-added resellers.

Our Solution

We design and manufacture routers that enable service providers to convert network bandwidth into differentiated services for their customers.
We provide both metro access and metro aggregation solutions that combine versatile connectivity with important service creation technologies
such as MPLS for layer-2 VPNs, bandwidth management, dynamic provisioning, hardware-based accounting data collection, and quality of
service. These features allow service providers in the metro area to penetrate new markets quickly, build solid revenue streams, and establish a
competitive advantage. Specifically, our products benefit customers in the following ways:

Network Availability, Reliability and Security

Our products provide high levels of network availability, reliability, and resilience even under heavy network traffic conditions. We achieve this
by combining our custom application specific integrated circuits, or ASICs, with our RapidOS software in a scalable, modular architecture. Our
routers are interoperable with a variety of products from other vendors. In collaboration with our customers, we have developed a testing
environment that includes real world configurations, allowing us to deliver reliable products. Our products meet numerous regulatory
requirements and our most advanced products are designed to be Network Equipment Building Systems, or NEBS, compliant. Our products also
incorporate numerous security protocols for supporting VPNs and secure network access.
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Service Creation

We have designed our products as platforms on which service providers can deliver sophisticated and differentiated services. The key service
enablers that are embedded in our products are:

Multiprotocol Label Switching (MPLS).    Our products offer advanced, secure service capabilities through the use of MPLS technology. MPLS
promotes higher performance of IP networks and allows traffic engineering. With MPLS, service providers can maximize their capital returns by
selling premium levels of service, such as bandwidth guarantees, fast recovery times, customized backup resources, as well as nation- or
world-wide Transparent LAN Services.

Bandwidth Management.    Our products offer advanced capabilities to manage bandwidth in real-time, without sacrificing network
performance. Our products allow our customers to remotely set bandwidth limits from one kilobit to one gigabit and easily integrate with leading
bandwidth management software.

Dynamic Provisioning.    As customer and application bandwidth needs change, commands sent remotely to our products can instantly and
inexpensively set-up, modify or terminate connections.

Accounting Data Collection.    Our products support hardware-based accounting data collection, allowing service providers to collect real-time
customer usage data and billing information without affecting network performance. This allows service providers to create and offer advanced
pricing structures tailored to their customers� needs by usage, by time-of-day and by location.

Quality of Service.    Our products separate traffic into multiple service classes based on end-user identity, application type, time-of-day and
other attributes. Our quality of service features allow service providers to improve service quality by assigning priority to delay-sensitive or
high-priority traffic such as voice or video.

Content Delivery.    To increase the speed of content delivery, our products offer network-wide capabilities to create the shortest and most
reliable path between the end-user and the content. This is accomplished through advanced traffic management using a broad range of Internet
routing protocols.

Flexible Service Delivery Platform

We design our products to operate and adapt to the rapidly evolving demands of our customers� network infrastructure. Our open application
programming interface allows our products to be easily integrated with the customers� bandwidth management, provisioning, accounting, data
collection, quality of service and content delivery tools. Our Intelligent Service Router architecture scales with the needs of service providers.
Additional line cards can be inserted into our modular chassis to increase bandwidth capacity. If bandwidth is exhausted in one chassis, service
providers can link multiple chassis together to obtain additional capacity. Our RapidOS operating system can scale in the face of increasing
Internet traffic while continuing to manage bandwidth, deliver routing throughput, and provide differentiated services. New technology
interfaces and RapidOS upgrades can be added to in-service chassis without disrupting existing operations. The modular design of our products
enable the rapid and easy addition of new services without requiring re-design of network architecture or replacement of existing infrastructure
equipment.

Our products support optical and electrical interfaces to ensure that services can be quickly provisioned across a broad range of media types.
This means that service providers using our routers can rapidly offer services across almost any infrastructure. This broad range of support is
delivered in a single chassis, eliminating the need to purchase multiple solutions or consume limited space.
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Cost-effective Infrastructure

Our products allow service providers to start with a low initial capital expenditure while retaining the ability to add bandwidth as demand
increases. Using our advanced provisioning capabilities, we believe service providers can reduce their operating costs by eliminating the need to
send technicians out into the field to provision service. Our products also offer high port density, which means our chassis occupy less space in
expensive hosting facilities. Using our wide array of media interfaces, service providers have the flexibility to choose the most appropriate
telecommunications medium to connect customers to their service.

Technology

Our core technology consists of our Intelligent Service Router architecture, our RapidOS software operating system, and our ASICs. These key
elements of our technology are incorporated into all of our products. By internally developing and maintaining the critical components for our
systems, we believe the performance and features of our systems are superior to those of systems based upon third-party general purpose
components. Our modular system architecture, coupled with our core hardware and software, enable us to create new products and solutions by
rapidly developing new interfaces, new features and new form factors or sizes.

Intelligent Service Router Architecture.    Our product architecture consists of ASIC-based packet forwarding engines distributed on each line
card and a centrally located routing engine running our RapidOS operating system, connected together by high-performance ASIC-based
switching devices. Our product architecture allows us to deliver the capacity, reliability and features that we believe are necessary to build and
expand our customers� metropolitan networks.

By distributing packet-processing functions on ASICs located on each line card, rather than on a centrally located general purpose CPU, we are
able to offer advanced functions while maintaining wirespeed performance. With this architecture, our products can increase bandwidth by
adding line cards without degrading overall performance. Our RS 38000 platform is designed to handle up to 90 million packets per second
when all of its line cards are installed.

Programmable Hardware Architecture.    This line card architecture, centered on a wire-speed, programmable packet-processing engine, enables
service providers to implement new networking technologies such as MPLS as they are introduced in the market through field upgrades.

RapidOS Operating System.    RapidOS, our standards-based software operating system, controls the features and functionality of our router
platforms. RapidOS incorporates a set of service enabling capabilities to meet the demands of service providers, such as traffic engineering,
bandwidth control, network traffic classification and network security. We do not sell RapidOS on a stand-alone basis. We have continued to
improve RapidOS since its introduction in 1998 based upon feedback from our customers.

RapidOS allows service providers to collect traffic statistics and billing data in real time. RapidOS also supports all standard Internet class
routing protocols, a complete set of industry standards-based layer 2 features and MPLS. RapidOS provides traffic load balancing and content
management of electronic-commerce applications. Our RapidOS is also capable of delivering network level redundancy at layer 2 and layer 3.

ASIC Technology.    The switching devices and forwarding engines in our products use internally developed ASICs that are designed specifically
for our router architecture. These ASICs implement service enabling features such as network traffic classification, accounting, security and
bandwidth management. The ASICs are designed to facilitate the rapid implementation of various electrical and optical network interfaces that
support transmission speeds from 1.5 megabits per second for a T1 line up to 10 gigabits per second for an optical carrier 192, or OC-192, line.
We believe our control over the design and development of ASICs and the close interaction between our hardware and software teams have
enabled us to achieve enhanced performance.
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Riverstone Products

We offer a wide variety of products to effectively address the broad metropolitan area network needs for aggregation and edge routing
applications.

RS 38000 Metro Aggregation Router.    The RS 38000 is our high density metro aggregation router. Aggregation routers aggregate and route
network traffic at carrier and service provider facilities before it is routed to the Internet backbone. Aggregation routers are also used for
aggregating and routing network traffic in co-location centers. The RS 38000 combines service creation tools, dynamic bandwidth provisioning,
and a connection-oriented data collection architecture. The RS 38000 is capable of aggregating and delivering these services over a complete
range of optical and legacy interfaces and is MPLS enabled. The RS 38000 provides high performance, high port density and high reliability,
and has the capability to support OC-192 and 10 Gigabit Ethernet. It can provide up to 90 million data packets per second routing performance.

RS 16000 Gigabit Ethernet Aggregation Router.    The RS 16000 is our high density Gigabit Ethernet aggregation router. The RS 16000,
designed to aggregate Gigabit Ethernet, provides full metro service-creation capabilities through our hardware-based architecture. The RS 16000
delivers 60 wire-speed Gigabit Ethernet ports on a 5 rack unit chassis. The RS 16000 is designed to support 10 Gigabit Ethernet.

RS 8000/8600 Metro Service Routers.    The RS 8000 and RS 8600 are our metro service router products. Metro service routers are used as the
Internet access or network traffic aggregation platform where small form factor and low power consumption are required. Metro service routers
must support a wide variety of interfaces and service-enabling features. These products aggregate the network traffic and pass it on to the
intelligent edge router.

The RS 8000 and RS 8600 are designed specifically to be service delivery platforms across both the optical and electrical segments of the metro
network infrastructure. As an aggregation platform, the RS 8000 and RS 8600 offer high port density in a small form factor. As an access
platform, the RS 8000 and RS 8600 are ideal for fiber optic cable connectivity in building backbones and data center in co-location facilities.
The RS 8000 and RS 8600 are capable of aggregating traffic from a wide variety of access technologies. The RS 8000 and RS 8600 use the same
line cards, thus offering maximum flexibility for upgrades.

RS 1000 and RS 3000 Metro Access Routers.    The RS 1000 and RS 3000 are our metro access routers with hardware routing capability. Metro
access routers are used to connect end-users with metro aggregation facilities. Metro access routers must support traditional connectivity and
advanced optical modules for Gigabit, ATM and Packet over SONET up-links.

The RS 1000 and RS 3000 routers support traditional connectivity and advanced optical modules. The RS 1000 and RS 3000 products
incorporate all the routing, switching, traffic engineering, accounting and security features of the rest of our router platform but in a smaller,
lower cost platform. The RS 1000 and RS 3000 share the same line cards, thus offering maximum flexibility for upgrades.
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Wide Array of Supported Line Cards

Our products include line cards that support all of the network technologies identified in this table. All line cards contain all of the service
enabling features of Riverstone�s architecture.

RS 38000 RS 16000 RS 8000/8600 RS 1000/3000

10 Gigabit Ethernet D D
MPLS Gigabit Ethernet ü D ü ü
Packet over SONET OC-192c D
Packet over SONET OC-48c/STM-16 ü
Packet over SONET OC-12c/STM-4 ü
Packet over SONET OC-3c/STM-1 ü
MPLS Packet over SONET OC-48c/STM-16 D
MPLS Packet over SONET OC-12c/STM-4 D D
MPLS Packet over SONET OC-3c/STM-1 D D
Resilient Packet Ring OC-48c D D
4 or 8 Gigabit CWDM ü ü
Pluggable Gigabit Interface
1000 Base-LH-70Km reach ü ü ü ü
1000 Base-LX ü ü ü ü
1000 Base-SX ü ü ü ü
1000 Base-T-copper GigE ü
ATM OC-12c D ü
ATM OC-3c/DS3 ü ü ü
10/100 Base-TX ü ü ü
100 Base-FX ü ü
Channelized T3 with CSU/DSU ü ü
Channelized T1 with CSU/DSU ü ü
Multi-rate serial WAN ü ü
Cable modem termination system-CMTS ü

A checkmark indicates that the line card is available now for the listed product. A �D� indicates that the line card is under development.

Research and Development

As of March 2, 2002, we employed 215 people in our engineering and research and development organization with the majority located in our
Santa Clara, California corporate headquarters. We believe that our future success depends on our ability to continually enhance our existing
products and develop new products. To achieve this goal, our research and development department is organized into two teams that work in
parallel to develop successive generations of networking products. We have assembled a team of skilled engineers with extensive experience in
the fields of high-speed microprocessor design, high-end computing, network system design, Internet routing protocols and embedded software.
These individuals have been drawn from leading computer, data networking and telecommunications companies. The engineering team�s
collective experience ranges from building complex hardware and software to delivering very large, highly integrated ASICs and scalable
Internet software.

We are using our fourth generation ASICs in our products. We are also developing additional network interfaces targeted to our customer
demands and continuing to develop next generation technology to support the anticipated growth in network size and service requirements, such
as Resilient Packet Ring/Spatial Reuse Protocol (RPR/SRP), 10-Gigabit Ethernet, OC-48 and OC-192. We continue to expand the functionality
and scalability of our RapidOS including advanced MPLS implementations.
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Our research and development expenses totaled $50.4 million for the fiscal year ended March 2, 2002, $42.0 million for the fiscal year ended
March 3, 2001 and $30.7 million for the fiscal year ended February 29, 2000.

Customers

Our customers include local exchange carriers, long distance carriers, Internet service providers, metropolitan service providers, content hosting
providers, and cable operators. As of March 2, 2002, we had approximately 150 customers, the majority of which were located in the United
States, Asia Pacific and Europe.

For fiscal year 2000, British Telecommunications plc accounted for 15% of our net revenue, EarthLink, Inc. accounted for 14% of our net
revenue, Metricom Corporation accounted for 12% of our net revenue and Vitts Networks accounted for 11% of our net revenue. For fiscal year
2001, Telseon accounted for 11% of our net revenue. During fiscal year 2002 no individual customer accounted for 10% or more of our net
revenues. Although our largest customers may vary from period to period, we anticipate that our operating results for any given period will
continue to depend significantly on large orders from a small number of customers. We do not have binding commitments from any of our
customers, and if any of our large customers cancel, reduce or delay purchases, our revenue and profitability would be harmed.

Sales and Marketing

We sell and market our products primarily through our direct sales organization, value-added resellers and original equipment manufacturers. As
of March 2, 2002, we employed 229 people in our sales and marketing organizations.

Sales

Americas Sales.    Our direct sales force for the Americas is divided into two operations: Carrier and Americas. The carrier group focuses on
local exchange carriers and long distance carriers and the Americas group focuses on Internet service providers, metropolitan service providers,
content hosting providers, and cable operators. Account managers within each operation work as a team with account-focused systems engineers
to provide our customers with guidance and assistance on incorporating our products into their network. Our systems engineers also help in
defining the features that are required for our products to be successful in specific applications. Our sales team maintains contact with key
individuals who have service planning and infrastructure build-out responsibility within our customers� organizations.

Value-added Resellers.    We have complemented our direct sales effort in the United States and internationally with several value-added
resellers. Our arrangements with value-added resellers typically have been non-exclusive and provide the value-added reseller with discounts
based upon the volume of their orders.

International Sales.    Our international sales are made through a combination of direct and indirect sales efforts. Our European operation is
headquartered near London, with sales offices in France and Spain. Our Asia Pacific operation is headquartered in Singapore with offices in
China, Japan and Korea. Additionally, we have a sales office in Brazil. Our indirect sales are made through various international network
integrators including Telindus Group NV, CommVerge Solutions, CTC Itochu-Techno Science Corporation, KDC Corporation, Vodatel
Networks Holdings Limited and ZTE Corporation. Our export sales represented 52%, 32% and 23% of net revenue in fiscal years 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. Our sales by geographic region are disclosed in Note (13) to the consolidated financial statements included in this Form
10-K. Our efforts to expand international distribution of our products continue to subject us to the risks of conducting business internationally,
including those set forth under �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Factors that May affect
Future Results and Market Price of Our Stock�We continue to expand our international sales efforts, and marketing and distributing our products
outside of the United States may require increased expenses and greater exposure to risks that we may not be able to successfully address.�
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Marketing

Our marketing objectives include building market awareness and acceptance of the Riverstone brand and our products, and creating qualified
customer leads. Our marketing activities include participation in tradeshows and technical conferences, preparation of sales tools, business cases,
competitive analyses and other marketing collateral and sales training. Our marketing activities also include the publication of press releases,
new product information and educational articles in industry journals, maintenance of our website and direct marketing to prospective
customers.

Service and Support

We believe that a broad range of support services is critical to the development of long-term relationships with customers. We are committed to
providing our customers with a high level of service and support through our internal organization and arrangements with third parties. As of
March 2, 2002, we employed 17 people in our customer service and support organization, the majority of whom are located in our Santa Clara,
California corporate headquarters.

Currently our customer service and support functions are provided by a combination of our customer service organization, Riverstone Technical
Assistance Center, or RTAC, organization and Field Technical Support organization. We deliver our support services to customers using a
three-tier support model. Our first tier of support services is technical assistance through Web self-help and internal telephone support. During
the past twelve months, we transitioned the services previously provided by Digital Equipment (India) to internal support services. We provide
field support services, our second tier of support services, to our contract customers when telephone support is not sufficient to address an issue.
To enhance our internal field support services, we have an infrastructure of field-based technical support resources as well as partnerships with
several third-party engineer, furnish and install, or EF&I, providers and professional services and maintenance service providers, including
Fujitsu, Tele-Tech, Greenwich Technology Partners and ViTAL Network Services to augment our capabilities and coverage globally. If the first
two tiers of our customer service and support team are unable to resolve an issue themselves, they obtain assistance from members of our
engineering department who serve as the third level of the customer support. We have established problem escalation guidelines to focus
appropriate technical resources and management attention on customers� problems in a timely manner.

Manufacturing

We out-source our manufacturing activities to Flextronics International. Flextronics manufactures our products in San Jose, California.

Under our relationship with Flextronics, we design, specify and monitor all of the tests that are required to meet internal and external quality
standards. Flextronics obtains materials, undertakes final assembly of prototype and production products, tests our products and ships them to
our customers. This strategic relationship allows us to concentrate on further developing our offerings and eliminates the need to dedicate
resources to manufacturing activities. This arrangement also allows us to adjust manufacturing volumes quickly to meet changes in demand.

We design our ASICs and printed circuit boards and work closely with our partners on future component selection and design support. All
materials used in our products are processed through a full qualification cycle and our sourcing is controlled by the use of an approved vendor
listing. We perform extensive examinations of all printed circuit board assemblies, full functionality verifications, 24-hour burn-in and
power-cycling at maximum and minimum configuration levels. Our ASICs are manufactured by NEC Corporation using its 0.35 micron process,
Agere Systems using its 0.25 micron process and LSI Logic Corporation using its 0.18 micron process. NEC, Agere and LSI Logic are
responsible for all aspects of the production of our ASICs using our proprietary designs. We periodically evaluate these and other ASIC vendors
to identify the best fit with our ASIC technology needs.
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Competition

There is significant competition in the market for network equipment. This market has historically been dominated by Cisco Systems, Inc. Other
existing and potential competitors are numerous and include established companies such as Extreme Networks, Inc., Foundry Networks, Inc.,
Juniper Networks, Inc., Nortel Networks Corporation and other smaller public and private companies. Several of these companies have been in
business longer than us and have substantially greater financial, marketing and development resources than we have, which we believe may put
us at a competitive disadvantage. Many of these competitors are in a better position than us to provide customers total network infrastructure
solutions. Many of these competitors have announced plans to introduce or develop new products that are likely to compete with our product
offerings. Future consolidation in our industry is a distinct possibility, and acquisitions by, or mergers among, our competitors could expand
their product offerings and hasten their development of new technologies, providing them with a competitive advantage.

Our customers include local exchange carriers, long distance carriers, Internet service providers, metropolitan service providers, content hosting
providers, and cable operators. We believe that the principal competitive factors in this market include product performance, reliability, security,
expandability, features and cost-effectiveness. Our products provide:

• high network reliability, security and performance;

• the ability to allow carriers and service providers to offer differentiated services;

• easy scalability and minimal network disruption;

• interoperability with existing network designs and equipment vendors;

• versatility of interfaces; and

• cost-effective solutions for carriers and service providers.

We believe these capabilities, when combined with our exclusive focus on carriers and service providers in the MAN, and our commitment to
providing superior support services provide us with a competitive advantage.

Intellectual Property

Our ASICs are the key components in our products. One of our ASIC families is manufactured by NEC, another by Agere and another by LSI
Logic. Each successive ASIC design has allowed faster network interfaces, greater service provider functionality and increased port density.
Both we and Enterasys share the basic technology embedded in the ASICs manufactured by NEC. However, we do not share with Enterasys our
later ASIC families manufactured by Agere and LSI Logic or our service provider specific network interfaces.

Our router architecture requires an operating system that takes full advantage of the features in our ASIC system. Our RapidOS management
system includes enhancements and customizations to address specific needs of service providers in the metropolitan area.

To establish and protect our intellectual property, we generally rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws and
contractual restrictions. As of March 2, 2002, we had 15 patents in the United States and 53 patents pending in the United States and abroad. Our
issued patents expire at various times between January 2016 and November 2018. Our RapidOS management system is protected by United
States and other trade secret and copyright laws. These legal protections provide only limited protection. Further, the market for Internet
infrastructure solutions is subject to rapid technological change. While we intend to continue to protect our proprietary rights where appropriate,
we believe that our success in maintaining a technology leadership position is more dependent on the technical expertise and innovative abilities
of our personnel rather than on these legal protections.
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Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary technology, we cannot assure you that the steps we take will be adequate to prevent
misappropriation of our technology or that our competitors will not independently develop technologies that are substantially equivalent or
superior to our technology. The laws of many countries do not protect our proprietary technology to as great an extent as do the laws of the
United States. We may need to resort to litigation in the future to enforce our intellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets, to
determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others or to defend against claims of invalidity. We are also subject to the risk of
adverse claims and litigation alleging infringement of the intellectual property rights of others. Any resulting litigation could result in substantial
costs and diversion of management and other resources and could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

Employees

As of March 2, 2002, we had 525 full-time employees, 215 of whom were engaged in engineering, research and development, 229 in sales and
marketing, 26 in manufacturing, 17 in customer support and 38 in finance, administration and operations. None of our employees is represented
by a labor union. We have not experienced any work stoppages and we consider our relations with our employees to be good.

ITEM 2.    Properties

Our principal administrative, sales, marketing and research and development facilities are located in an approximately 129,200 square foot
facility located in Santa Clara, California. Cabletron Systems Sales and Service, Inc. entered into a lease for this facility in January 1999, and
assigned this lease to us on August 28, 2000 following the separation of our business from Cabletron. The initial term of the lease expires on
February 28, 2006. We also lease space in various other geographic locations, including Alpharetta, Georgia; Denver, Colorado; Frisco, Texas;
McLean, Virginia; New York, New York; Portsmouth, New Hampshire; Reading, United Kingdom; Beijing, PRC; Hong Kong, PRC; Shanghai,
PRC; Taiwan, ROC; Singapore; Seoul, Korea; Tokyo, Japan; Sao Paolo, Brazil and other international locations where principally sales and
service personnel and engineers are based.

We believe that our existing facilities are adequate to meet current requirements, and that suitable additional or substitute space will be available
as needed to accommodate any further physical expansion of corporate operations and for any additional sales offices.

ITEM 3.    Legal Proceedings

A consolidated class action lawsuit raising claims against Cabletron and some officers and directors of Cabletron was filed in the United States
District Court for the District of New Hampshire and, following transfer, is pending in the District of Rhode Island. The complaint alleges that
Cabletron and several of its officers and directors made materially false and misleading statements about Cabletron�s operations and acted in
violation of Section 10(b) of and Rule 10b-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the period between March 3, 1997 and December
2, 1997. The complaint also alleges that Cabletron�s accounting practices resulted in the disclosure of materially misleading financial results
during the same period. More specifically, the complaint challenged Cabletron�s revenue recognition policies, accounting for product returns, and
the validity of some sales. The complaint does not specify the amount of damages sought on behalf of the class. The plaintiffs served a second
consolidated class action complaint and Cabletron filed a motion to dismiss this complaint. In a ruling dated May 23, 2001, the district court
dismissed this complaint with prejudice. The plaintiffs have appealed this ruling to the First Circuit Court of Appeals. If the plaintiffs were to
prevail on appeal, and ultimately prevail on the merits of the case, Enterasys (formerly known as Cabletron) could be required to pay substantial
damages.

We have not assumed any liabilities from Enterasys for this litigation. We have not been named as a defendant in this litigation and none of our
officers or directors is named as a defendant to this litigation. However, the plaintiffs might attempt to involve us in this litigation or might seek
to have us pay damages if
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Enterasys has insufficient assets to cover any resulting damages. Any involvement in this litigation could be protracted and may result in a
diversion of management and other resources. The payment of substantial legal costs or damages, or the diversion of our management and other
resources, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

On August 28, 2001, Tellabs Operations, Inc. filed an action against us in the Chancery Division of the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois
alleging that Riverstone breached the Strategic Alliance Agreement dated as of November 17, 2000 between Riverstone and Tellabs and
committed various torts by (i) failing to provide Tellabs with CMTS products that met the technical specifications in the agreement; (ii)
misrepresenting to Tellabs the technical capabilities of Riverstone�s CMTS products; and (iii) improperly selling Riverstone products to Tellabs
customers. Tellabs� complaint seeks compensatory damages in excess of $15 million, plus punitive damages and costs in unspecified amounts.
On that same date, Tellabs terminated the agreement and is seeking a declaratory judgment that it has no further obligations under the
agreement. We believe that Tellabs� claims are without merit and intend to vigorously defend this proceeding. On August 29, 2001, Riverstone
filed suit against Tellabs in the Superior Court for Santa Clara County, California seeking compensatory damages in excess of $60 million,
including over $56 million in unfulfilled minimum purchase obligations Tellabs was required to make under the agreement. On December 7,
2001, Riverstone withdrew its suit without prejudice to re-file at a later time. On January 9, 2002, Riverstone asserted numerous affirmative
defenses and counterclaims against Tellabs in the Illinois action, including claims for breach of contract, fraud, negligent misrepresentation, and
violations of the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practice Act. Through its counterclaims, Riverstone seeks $57 million in
compensatory damages, in addition to punitive damages, attorneys� fees and costs.

We have granted options to purchase shares of our common stock under our 2000 Equity Incentive Plan to our employees and employees of
Cabletron and its affiliates and to our advisors and consultants. As a result of the nature of the persons who received these options and the
vesting provisions of these options granted prior to February 22, 2001, we may have violated the California state securities laws. Because these
option grants may not have been qualified or exempt from qualification under California state securities laws, certain persons residing in
California who received these options may have a claim against us. Accordingly, we may offer to repurchase, from persons who resided in
California at the time of grant, outstanding options to purchase shares of our common stock granted under our 2000 Equity Incentive Plan prior
to February 22, 2001 and shares acquired upon exercise of options granted prior to February 22, 2001. We have not yet determined whether or
when to make the offer to repurchase. If an offer to repurchase is actually made and if all of the holders of these options (and shares acquired
upon exercise of these options) accept the offer, our cash position could be adversely impacted. As of the date hereof, we are not aware of any
claims for rescission against us.

On January 31, 2002, the Securities and Exchange Commission notified Enterasys Networks that it had commenced an �Order of Investigation�
into Enterasys� and certain of its affiliates� accounting practices. This SEC investigation may cover periods during which Riverstone was an
affiliate of Enterasys. We have not been notified that we are part of the SEC investigation, nor have we received any inquiry with respect to the
investigation. On August 6, 2001, when Cabletron distributed all of its shares of our common stock to its stockholders, we ceased to be a
subsidiary of Cabletron and an affiliate of Enterasys. We have been operating with our own management and board of directors since our IPO in
February 2001.

We are not aware of any other legal proceedings against us that, individually or in the aggregate, would have a material adverse effect on our
business, operating results or financial condition. We may in the future be party to litigation arising in the course of our business, including
claims that we allegedly infringe third-party trademarks and other intellectual property rights. These claims, even if not meritorious, could result
in the expenditure of significant financial and managerial resources.

ITEM 4.    Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002.
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PART II

ITEM 5.    Market for Registrant�s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock commenced trading on The Nasdaq National Market on February 16, 2001 and is traded under the symbol �RSTN.� Prior to
this time, there was no public market for our stock. The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low closing sale prices
for our common stock as reported on The Nasdaq National Market.

Fiscal Year 2001 High Low

Fourth Quarter: February 16, 2001 to March 3, 2001 $ 14.50 $ 10.50

Fiscal Year 2002

First Quarter: March 4, 2001 to June 2, 2001 $ 23.66 $ 6.63
Second Quarter: June 3, 2001 to September 2, 2001 23.04 9.48
Third Quarter: September 3, 2001 to December 1, 2001 16.21 5.25
Fourth Quarter: December 2, 2001 to March 2, 2002 20.55 3.82

Fiscal Year 2003

First Quarter: March 3, 2002 to May 24, 2002 $ 6.86 $ 3.53

As of May 24, 2002, there were approximately 2,500 holders of record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We intend to retain any future earnings for funding growth and do not
expect to pay any dividends in the near future.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On July 24, 2001, we issued 7,117,757 shares of our common stock to Cabletron in exchange for approximately $122.2 million in cash and
certain strategic investments, with a historic cost of approximately $13.0 million.

On August 6, 2001, concurrently with the distribution by Cabletron of our capital stock to its stockholders, we were required to issue warrants to
certain strategic investors to purchase 230,364 shares of our common stock, which is based on the number of shares that the investors would
have received in such distribution if the investors had exercised the Cabletron warrants they held immediately prior to the record date related to
the distribution. These warrants have a weighted average exercise price of $29.18 per share and will expire on August 29, 2007.

The issuances described in this Item 5 were deemed to be exempt from registration in reliance upon Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, as a transaction by an issuer not involving any public offering.
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ITEM 6.    Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations� and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included in Item 8 of this Report.

We have prepared the accompanying tables to reflect our historical consolidated financial information in a manner consistent with stand-alone
operations by reflecting transactions of Cabletron and balances attributable to us in our financial statements for all periods presented. The
historical financial information may not be indicative of our future performance and does not necessarily reflect what our financial position and
results of operations would have been had we operated as a separate, stand-alone entity during the periods covered.

Years Ended

Mar 2,
2002

Mar 3,
2001

Feb 29,
2000

Feb 28,
1999

Feb 28,
1998

(in thousands, except share and pro forma per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenues $ 210,758 $ 98,258 $ 23,076 $ 3,284 $ 59
Cost of revenues 89,631 43,271 11,976 3,009 7
Stock-based compensation 527 197 �  �  �  

Total cost of revenues 90,158 43,468 11,976 3,009 7

Gross profit 120,600 54,790 11,100 275 52
Operating expenses:
Research and development 50,356 41,959 30,691 26,647 12,013
Sales and marketing 55,284 35,578 9,279 3,188 1,962
General and administrative 24,472 14,042 8,534 5,025 3,053
Stock-based compensation 2,957 31,126 �  �  �  
Restructuring and other charges 3,269 �  �  150,382 �  
Total operating expenses 136,338 122,705 48,504 185,242 17,028

Operating loss (15,738) (67,915) (37,404) (184,967) (16,976)
Interest income and other income/(expense), net 10,353 2,143 �  �  �  
Interest expense (2,652) (4) (27) (28) �  
Loss on investments (22,130) �  �  �  �  

Loss before income taxes (30,167) (65,776) (37,431) (184,995) (16,976)
Income taxes 520 �  �  �  �  

Net loss $ (30,687) $ (65,776) $ (37,431) $ (184,995) $ (16,976)

Net loss per share:
Basic and diluted $ (0.27) $ (13.96) $ (374,310) $ (1,849,950) $ (169,760)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted 114,383,815 4,711,995 100 100 100
Pro forma net loss per share:
Basic and diluted �  $ (0.71) $ (0.41) �  �  
Pro forma weighted average number of common shares
outstanding:
Basic and diluted �  92,763,390 92,088,235 �  �  

Mar 2,
2002

Mar 3,
2001

Feb 29,
2000

Feb 28,
1999

Feb 28,
1998

(in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 123,095 $ 167,949 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Working capital 298,211 196,287 11,425 3,762 (348)
Total assets 611,621 264,043 33,248 24,529 2,961
Convertible subordinated notes 175,000 �  �  �  �  
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Stockholders� equity 375,095 218,782 27,028 22,919 2,337
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ITEM 7.    Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion with the consolidated financial statements and related notes of Riverstone appearing elsewhere in this
report. When used in the discussion below, the words �expect,� �anticipate,� �estimate,� �plan,� �believe,� �intend� and similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. These statements, which include statements as to our expectations regarding net income or losses, trends in
average selling prices, gross margins and revenues, expected cost of revenues and sources of revenues, changes in product mix, inventory levels,
the adequacy of allowances for doubtful accounts, expectations regarding expenses, including investments in product development, expected
stock-based compensation expenses, expected cost structure reductions as a result of restructuring, statements regarding our critical accounting
policies, the adequacy of capital resources and expected variations in capital requirements, expectations regarding capital expenditures and
growth of operations and infrastructure, strategic investments, plans to expand sales organizations, the features and benefits of our current and
future products, expectations regarding the development and maintenance of strategic distribution relationships and our exchange risk
management strategy, are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. These risks
and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those risks discussed below, as well as our ability to successfully bring future products to
market, gain market share and compete against established companies in our market, the impact of alternative technological advances and
competitive products, our ability to develop and maintain strategic relationships, and the matters discussed in �Factors That May Affect Future
Results and Market Price of Our Stock.� These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date hereof. The Company expressly disclaims
any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any
change in the Company�s expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is
based.

Overview

We are a leading provider of metropolitan area networking solutions that enable service providers to convert raw bandwidth into profitable
services over legacy and next-generation infrastructures. Our products consist of advanced routers that enable service providers to offer a wide
range of products and services that increase revenue and maintain customer loyalty.

Riverstone was created by the combination of two businesses previously acquired by Cabletron. These businesses are Zeitnet, which Cabletron
acquired in 1996, and Yago Systems, which Cabletron acquired in 1998. The majority of our net revenues come from sales of our routers. In
fiscal year 2000, British Telecom accounted for 15% of our net revenues, Earthlink accounted for 14% of our net revenues, Metricom accounted
for 12% of our net revenues, and Vitts Networks accounted for 11% of our net revenues. In fiscal year 2001, Telseon accounted for 11% of our
net revenues. In fiscal year 2002, no individual customer accounted for 10% or more of our net revenues. We began shipping products outside
the United States in fiscal year 2000, and these shipments accounted for 23% of our net revenues during fiscal year 2000, 32% of our net
revenues during fiscal year 2001 and 52% of our net revenues during fiscal year 2002.

Our industry has experienced erosion of average selling prices. We anticipate that the average selling prices of our products will decrease in the
future in response to competitive pricing pressures, which may reduce our gross margins or revenues. We expect our quarterly gross margins to
fluctuate with changes in our product mix. Most of our sales within the United States have been through direct sales channels. We intend to add
and maintain a limited number of strategic distribution relationships that complement our direct sales efforts. International sales are made
through a combination of direct and indirect sale efforts. In fiscal 2002 we initiated sales and marketing efforts internationally, focusing initially
on Europe and Asia. As part of this effort, we have negotiated separate reseller agreements with various network integrators in Europe and Asia.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The SEC recently advised companies to review their critical accounting policies and practices in the context of their financial statements and
management�s discussion and analysis of such financial statements to ensure that important information is communicated to facilitate an investor�s
understanding of a company�s results of operations (FR60 �Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting Policies�). In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, our most important accounting policies often require us to make
estimates and judgments of uncertain matters that could have a material effect on our results of operations during the period reported and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Management
bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience, market trends and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could differ from these estimates. The following critical accounting policies are impacted significantly by
judgments, assumptions and estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition and Related Warranty Accounting.    We generally recognize revenue upon shipment of products provided that there are no
uncertainties regarding customer acceptance, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the sales price is fixed and determinable and
collectibility is deemed probable. If uncertainties exist, revenue is recognized when these uncertainties are resolved. Revenues from service and
maintenance contracts are deferred and recognized ratably over the period the services are performed, typically twelve months or less. When we
make sales to international network integrators and value added resellers, in some cases they are given privileges to return a portion of inventory
up to a maximum amount with placement of new orders for an equivalent amount of product. We accrue estimated warranty costs and sales
returns and allowances at the time of shipment based on contractual rights and historical experience. If the historical data we use to calculate the
estimated sales returns and allowances do not properly reflect future returns, a change in accruals for sales returns and allowances would be
made in the period in which such a determination was made and our revenues could be adversely affected. Additionally, if we experience an
increase in warranty claims, which are higher than our historical experience, our gross margin could be adversely affected.

Lease Financing.    We enter into transactions in which customers receive financing for the purchase of Company equipment from third party
leasing organizations, who in turn remit payment to us. In certain transactions during fiscal year 2002, the Company guaranteed a portion of the
customer�s lease payments to be made to the lessor. We record these transactions consistent with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 13, Accounting for Leases (�SFAS 13�) and related interpretations. Substantially all of our customer leasing transactions involve capital
leases. When we provide a financing guarantee, we record revenue at the time of shipment, subject to a sales reserve. We base the amount of the
reserve on a percentage of the guaranteed lease payments, based on specific customer analysis supplemented with industry experience.
Accordingly, we have deferred revenue subject to this reserve that will be recognized by the end of the respective lease terms if all lease
payments are made by end users. As of March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001, we had guaranteed payments associated with lease transactions of
approximately $9.4 million and $10.1 million, respectively. If the customer defaults are higher than our historical experience, an increase in
sales reserves would be made in the period in which such a determination was made and our revenues could be adversely affected.

Inventories.    The networking industry is characterized by rapid technological change, frequent new product introductions, changes in customer
requirements, and evolving industry standards. We regularly monitor inventory quantities on hand and record a provision for excess and obsolete
inventories based primarily on our estimated forecast of product demand and production requirements. While we believe that our provision for
excess and obsolete inventory is adequate, if there is a sudden and significant decrease in demand for our products or there is a higher risk of
inventory obsolescence due to rapidly changing technology, we may be required to write-down our inventory and our gross margin could be
adversely affected.

Accounts receivable.    We continually monitor and evaluate the collectibility of our trade receivables based on a combination of factors. We
record specific allowances for bad debts when we become aware of a specific
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customer�s inability to meet its financial obligation to us such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or deterioration of financial position. Estimates
are used in determining our allowances for all other customers based on factors such as current trends, the length of time the receivables are past
due and historical collection experiences. While we believe that our allowance for doubtful accounts receivable is adequate, if there is a sudden
deterioration of a major customer�s credit worthiness or actual defaults are higher than our historical experience, our estimates of the
recoverability of amounts due us could be adversely affected.

Strategic Investments.    As part of our long-term strategy, we have made investments in equity and convertible debt of public and private
companies. The investees are generally companies in the telecommunications industry that have received and are expected to continue to receive
funding from top tier venture capital firms, have passed a credit review consistent with other of our customers and have a sound business model
and experienced management team. We hold less than 20% of the equity of each of these companies and we do not have the ability to exercise
significant influence over their operations. Accordingly, these investments are accounted for using the cost method. We use independent
valuations or recent third party investments of cash for equity to support the initial carrying value of the investments. We review the carrying
value of these investments at the end of each reporting period to determine if any investments are impaired. This review includes an evaluation
of historical and projected financial performance, expected cash needs and recent funding events. Other-than-temporary impairments are
recognized in earnings if the market value of the investment is below its current carrying value for more than six months or the issuer has
experienced significant financial declines or difficulties in raising capital to continue operations. Our ability to recover investments from these
investees is largely dependent on equity market conditions and the occurrence of liquidity events, such as initial public offerings, mergers, and
private sales. All of these factors are difficult to predict, particularly in the current economic environment and our net income in the future could
be adversely affected by investment impairment charges. If one or more of our investees experience a significant financial decline, our estimates
of the recoverability of amounts due us, if any, from these investees could be adversely affected. The strategic investments are more fully
described in Note (4) to the consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K.

Basis of Presentation

Our fiscal year 2000 ended on February 29, 2000. Effective March 1, 2000, we changed our year-end to a 52-53 week fiscal year, ending on the
Saturday closest to the last calendar day in February.

Through August 6, 2001, Riverstone was a subsidiary of Cabletron. Through this date, our consolidated financial statements have been taken
from the consolidated financial statements of Cabletron using historical results of operations and historical bases of the assets and liabilities
attributable to our operations. Through August 6, 2001, the consolidated financial statements also included allocations to us of Cabletron
corporate expenses, including centralized legal, accounting, treasury, real estate, information technology, distribution, customer services, sales,
marketing, engineering and other corporate services and infrastructure costs. All of the allocations and estimates in our financial statements were
based upon assumptions that our management and Cabletron�s management believed to be reasonable reflections of the cost of services provided
or benefit received by us.

The financial information presented herein is not indicative of our financial position, results of operations or cash flows in the future, nor is it
necessarily indicative of what our financial position, results of operations or cash flows would have been had we been a separate, stand-alone
company for the periods presented.
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Results of Operations

The following table shows consolidated statements of operations data expressed as a percentage of net revenues for the periods indicated:

Year Ended

Mar 2,
2002

Mar 3,
2001

Feb 29,
2000

Net revenues 100% 100% 100%
Cost of revenues 43 44 52

Gross profit 57 56 48

Operating expenses:
Research and development 23 43 133
Sales and marketing 26 36 40
General and administrative 12 14 37
Stock-based compensation 1 32 �  
Restructuring charges 2 �  �  

Total operating expenses 64 125 210

Operating loss (7) (69) (162)
Interest and other income 5 2 �  
Interest expense (1) �  �  
Loss on investments (11) �  �  

Net loss before income taxes (14) (67) (162)
Income taxes (1) �  �  

Net loss (15)% (67)% (162)%

Net Revenues.    Net revenues were $210.8 million, $98.3 million and $23.1 million in fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
representing increases of $112.5 million or 114% from fiscal year 2001 to 2002 and $75.2 million or 326% from fiscal year 2000 to 2001. The
increases in net revenues were primarily due to the addition of new service provider customers both in the United States and internationally.
International sales increased by 257% and 466% and domestic sales increased by 50% and 283% in fiscal years 2002 and 2001, respectively.
During fiscal year 2002, the economic downturn and the reduction of capital spending by our existing and potential customers adversely
impacted our product demand and made it increasingly difficult to accurately forecast our future revenues, as evidenced by declining quarterly
revenues during our fourth quarter. The current economic conditions may cause future revenues and operating results to vary significantly and
unexpectedly from quarter to quarter.

In order to establish relationships with companies in markets consistent with our long-term strategic direction, we have invested in equity and
convertible debt of private and public companies that are also our customers. During fiscal year 2002, sales to these strategic investee companies
represented 16.2% of our net revenues, with sales to no one investee company exceeding 5.0% of our net revenues. Additionally, sales to
companies in which Cabletron held investments at the time of the sales represented 5.5% of our net revenues. During fiscal years 2001 and 2000,
sales to companies in which Cabletron held investments represented 13.4% and 15.8% of our net revenues, respectively.

Cost of Revenues.    Cost of revenues includes costs of raw materials, direct labor, manufacturing overhead and amounts paid to third-party
contract manufacturers, and other costs related to warranty and contractual obligations and customer service and support. Cost of revenues was
$90.2 million, $43.5 million and $12.0 million in fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, representing increases of $46.7 million or
107% from fiscal year 2001 to 2002 and $31.5 million or 263% from fiscal year 2000 to 2001. Cost of revenues was 42.8%, 44.2% and 51.9% of
net revenues during fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase in
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cost of revenues for all periods is primarily related to the increase in net revenues. The improvements in gross margins are primarily attributable
to decreased component prices and economies of scale achieved from increased sales levels. Our gross margins are highly variable and could
decline in the future due to many factors such as our and our competitors� pricing policies, increased warranty costs and new product
introductions by us or by our competitors.

Research and Development.    Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and related personnel expenses, consultants and
outside service provider fees, non-recurring engineering charges and prototype costs related to the development, testing and enhancement of our
ASICs and software, and the depreciation of property and equipment related to these activities. Our research and development efforts can require
significant expenditures, the timing of which can cause quarterly variability in our expenses.

Research and development expenses excluding stock-based compensation were $50.4 million, $42.0 million and $30.7 million in fiscal years
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, representing increases of $8.4 million or 20% from fiscal year 2001 to 2002 and $11.3 million or 37% from
fiscal year 2000 to 2001. The increase in research and development expenses in fiscal 2002 related primarily to increased expenditures on the
design and development of our new products. Approximately $3.7 million of the increase in research and development expenses in fiscal 2001
related to Cabletron�s transfer to us of its research and development group based in Reading, England during the first quarter of fiscal year 2001.
Historically, these engineers worked on Cabletron�s products. The remaining increases for fiscal 2000 and 2001 resulted from increased
personnel and related costs. Research and development expenses as a percentage of net revenues were 23%, 43% and 133% in fiscal year 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. We believe continued investment in product enhancements and new product development are critical to attain our
strategic objectives and we expect our research and development expenses to slightly increase in absolute dollars as we continue to devote
significant resources to research and development in the foreseeable future.

Sales and Marketing.    Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries, commissions and related expenses for personnel engaged in
marketing, sales and customer support functions, and trade shows, advertising and promotional expenses. Sales and marketing expenses
excluding stock-based compensation were $55.3 million, $35.6 million and $9.3 million in fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
representing increases of $19.7 million or 55% from fiscal year 2001 to 2002 and $26.3 million or 283% from fiscal year 2000 to 2001. The
increases in sales and marketing expenses during these periods resulted primarily from the addition of sales and marketing personnel to support
increased sales and marketing activities. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of net revenues were 26%, 36% and 40% in fiscal years
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. We expect these expenses to decrease slightly in absolute dollars during fiscal year 2003 as we support our
products and market segments.

General and Administrative.    General and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee compensation and related expenses,
professional and contractor fees, finance, legal, facilities, human resources and provisions for doubtful accounts. Through August 6, 2001,
included in general and administrative expenses are expenses for services provided by Cabletron under our services agreement with them.
Before the effective date of the services agreement, March 1, 2000, Cabletron allocated to us general and administrative expenses that it incurred
on our behalf, based on headcount and revenue.

General and administrative expenses excluding stock-based compensation were $24.5 million, $14.0 million and $8.5 million in fiscal years
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, representing increases of $10.5 million or 74% from fiscal year 2001 to 2002 and $5.5 million or 65% from
fiscal year 2000 to 2001. The increase from fiscal year 2001 to 2002 was due to a $3.7 million increase in our provision for doubtful accounts as
a result of the impact of the deteriorating economy on our customer base and increased general corporate expenses. The increase from fiscal year
2000 to 2001 was primarily due to the addition of personnel to support the increase in revenue and general corporate expenses consistent with
the increased scale of operations. General and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenues were 12%, 14% and 37% in fiscal years
2002, 2001 and
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2000, respectively. We expect general and administrative expenses to decrease slightly in absolute dollars during fiscal year 2003.

Stock-Based Compensation.    We recorded total unearned stock-based compensation of $11.1 million during the twelve months ended March 3,
2001, related to stock option grants to employees based on the excess of the determined fair market value over the exercise price at the date of
grant and for an individual who changed employment status from Cabletron to Riverstone, of which approximately $3.2 million and $1.4 million
was expensed as stock-based compensation during fiscal year 2002 and 2001, respectively. This expense was classified as cost of revenues or
operating expense depending upon the classification of the respective employees. We recorded approximately $27.8 million of stock-based
compensation expense during the twelve months ended March 3, 2001, relating to stock option grants to employees of Cabletron and Enterasys
of which $24.9 million related to the acceleration of vesting of these options during our third quarter of fiscal year 2001. We recorded
approximately $129,000 and $2.1 million of compensation expense related to options granted to consultants during fiscal year 2002 and 2001,
respectively. We also recorded $190,000 of stock-based compensation related to stock option grant modifications during fiscal year 2002.

Restructuring Charges.    On February 28, 2002, we announced a restructuring in an effort to better align our business operations with the
current market as well as service provider and carrier industry conditions. The restructuring program included a worldwide workforce reduction,
discontinuance of certain products and an asset write-off related to the workforce reduction and discontinued product line. The restructuring
program resulted in the reduction of approximately 50 employees across all business functions. For the year ended March 2, 2002, we recorded
charges of approximately $0.5 million, $0.9 million and $1.9 million relating to severance, discontinued product line and asset write-offs,
respectively. We expect that the restructuring will result in an approximately $5.0 million reduction in annual salary and other payroll related
expenses.

Loss on investments.    The Company has invested in equity and convertible debt of certain public and private companies. These investments
have been made to establish relationships with companies in markets that the Company believes are consistent with its long-term strategic
direction. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, certain private companies in which we held investments were experiencing financial declines
and were not likely to have sufficient cash flows to operate in the next twelve months. As a result, we determined that investments in these
investees had declined in fair value on an other-than-temporary basis and accordingly recorded impairment write-downs of our minority equity
and convertible debt investments of $22.1 million.

Interest and other income, net.    Interest income is earned on funds we keep on deposit in interest bearing money market, short-term investment
and long-term investment accounts. Riverstone had interest income of $10.6 million and $2.1 million in fiscal year 2002 and 2001, respectively.
During 2000, we recorded no interest income as cash was managed centrally by Cabletron. Interest income increased significantly during fiscal
years 2001 and 2002 due to higher cash balances resulting from the proceeds from our initial public offering on February 22, 2001, the sale of
our common stock to Cabletron in July 2001 and the issuance of convertible notes in November 2001.

Interest expense.    Interest expense was $2.7 million, $4,000 and $27,000 in fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Interest expense in
fiscal year 2002 consisted of accrued interest and amortization of debt issuance costs, both attributable to the issuance of the 3.75% convertible
subordinated notes in November 2001, as well as interest on trade accounts receivable that were sold to an unrelated financial institution. Interest
expense in fiscal years 2000 and 2001 is related to a note payable associated with a financing arrangement to provide equipment financing
assumed as part of the Yago acquisition. Borrowings under this arrangement carried interest at an effective rate of 9% and were repaid fully
during fiscal year 2001.

Income Taxes.    We recorded a $520,000 provision for income taxes in fiscal 2002 primarily due to state minimum taxes and foreign income
taxes. Prior to our being spun-off from Cabletron on August 6, 2001, our operating results were included in Cabletron�s consolidated, combined
or unitary federal, state and foreign
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income tax returns. Effective as of August 7, 2001, we will file our United States federal, state and foreign income tax returns on a separate
basis. Our provision for income taxes has been determined on a separate company return method for fiscal 2000, 2001 and 2002. We have not
recognized any deferred income tax benefit for net operating losses incurred in fiscal 2000, 2001 and 2002 because Cabletron utilized certain of
our net operating losses incurred prior to the contribution of the Cabletron-owned assets relating to our business to us on August 28, 2000 and
the balance of our net operating losses represent deferred tax assets we have inherited in the spin-off transaction for which we have recorded a
full valuation allowance. Under a separate company return method and due to our history of operating losses, our management has concluded
that, after considering all the available objective evidence, it is more likely than not that our deferred tax assets will be not be realized.

Effective as of June 3, 2000 and in anticipation of the August 28, 2000 contribution to Riverstone of the Cabletron-owned assets related to the
Riverstone business, we entered into a tax sharing agreement with Cabletron. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Cabletron is required to
reimburse us for any tax net operating losses attributable to us that are used by Cabletron, and we are required to reimburse Cabletron for any tax
liabilities attributable to us that are paid by Cabletron. No amounts were paid to or received from Cabletron in fiscal year 2001 and 2002 in
connection with the tax sharing agreement and there were no outstanding amounts due to or from Cabletron as of March 2, 2002.

We are in the process of establishing foreign subsidiaries in various foreign countries with different rates of tax to facilitate the expansion of our
international business operations. As a result, we anticipate that our mix of domestic and foreign income before taxes in the various taxing
jurisdictions may fluctuate between each quarter and this could cause our effective tax rate to fluctuate in fiscal 2003.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Prior to our initial public offering, Cabletron administered our cash. We transferred cash receipts related to our business to Cabletron
periodically, and Cabletron provided funds to cover our disbursements. We completed our initial public offering in February 2001 and realized
net proceeds of $108.8 million. At completion of our initial public offering, we also received $46.6 million from the exercise of stock purchase
rights by strategic investors. On July 24, 2001, we issued 7,117,757 shares of our common stock to Cabletron in exchange for approximately
$122.2 million in cash and certain strategic investments with a historic cost of approximately $13.0 million. In November 2001 we completed an
offering of 3.75% convertible subordinated notes and realized net proceeds of approximately $170.0 million.

The Company has a $15.0 million credit facility available under a revolving line of credit. This borrowing facility does not require compliance
with any financial covenants and can be withdrawn by the financial institution at anytime. At March 2, 2002 there was no indebtedness
outstanding under this credit facility.

At March 2, 2002, we had cash and cash equivalents of $123.1 million, marketable short-term investments of $160.8 million and marketable
long-term investments of $161.9 million. Cash equivalents consisted of government and non-government debt securities and money market
funds with original maturities of less than 90 days. Short-term and long-term investments were comprised of commercial paper, and government
and non-government debt securities with original maturities greater than 90 days.

Despite our net loss of $30.1 million, net cash provided by operating activities was $2.8 million in fiscal year 2002 primarily due to non-cash
charges such as amortization and depreciation, write-down of private equity securities and provisions for losses on accounts receivable. Our
working capital needs consumed cash in 2002 as increases in accounts receivable and inventory were greater than increases in accounts payable
and accrued expenses. Net cash used by operating activities was $22.8 million in fiscal year 2001 and $40.3 million in fiscal year 2000. Cash
used by operating activities in these periods was primarily attributable to general operating expenses, increases in accounts receivable resulting
primarily from the addition of new service provider customers, and increases in inventories and other working capital items.
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Net cash used in investing activities was $378.5 million, $35.7 million and $4.1 million in fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. In
fiscal year 2002, net cash used in investing activities primarily consisted of $17.7 million of capital expenditures, purchases of $11.5 million of
restricted investments and $49.2 million of strategic investments in private and public companies, and net purchases of marketable securities of
$300.1 million. Investing activities consisted of $14.1 million of capital expenditures and $21.5 million in purchases of marketable securities in
fiscal year 2001. Investing activities consisted of capital expenditures of $4.1 million in fiscal year 2000. Capital expenditures during all periods
include production equipment, research and development equipment, computers, enterprise resource planning software applications and
facility-related improvements.

Cash provided by financing activities was $330.7 million, $226.4 million and $44.4 million in fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. In
fiscal year 2002 cash provided by financing activities consisted primarily of net proceeds from the issuance of the convertible subordinated notes
of approximately $170.0 million, and proceeds of option exercises and issuances of common stock of $159.4 million. In fiscal year 2001 cash
provided by financing activities consisted primarily of net proceeds from our initial public offering of $108.7 million, $7.2 million from the
issuance of stock purchase rights to the strategic investors and $46.6 million from exercise of the stock purchase rights. We also received net
transfers from Cabletron under our cash administration arrangements with them of $64.0 million in 2001. In fiscal year 2000 the funds received
from Cabletron were $44.5 million.

We currently have operating lease commitments of $16.9 million, convertible subordinated notes of $175.0 million due December 2006 and
standby letters of credit relating to lease guarantees of $9.4 million. (See notes 5, 9 and 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for details of
our restricted cash, future debt payment obligations and operating lease commitments.) Our future capital requirements will depend on a number
of factors, including the timing and rate of the expansion of our business, resources we devote to developing our products and market acceptance
of our products. We anticipate devoting substantial capital resources to continue our research and development efforts, to hire and expand our
sales, support, marketing and product development organizations, to expand marketing programs, and for other general corporate activities and
infrastructure. Although we do not have any current plans or commitments to do so, from time to time, we may also consider the acquisition of
products and businesses complementary to our business. Any acquisition or investments may require additional capital. Although it is difficult
for us to predict future liquidity requirements with certainty, we believe that our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable short-and
long-term investments together with our existing credit facility will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for working capital and
capital expenditures over the next 12 months.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 141,
Business Combinations and No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS 141 and SFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires that the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS 141 also includes guidance on the initial
recognition and measurement of goodwill and other intangible assets arising from business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS
142 prohibits the amortization of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. SFAS 142 requires that these assets be reviewed for
impairment at least annually. Intangible assets with finite lives will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives. Additionally,
SFAS 142 requires that goodwill included in the carrying value of equity method investment no longer be amortized.

We will apply SFAS 142 beginning the first quarter of fiscal year 2003. Application of the non-amortization provisions of SFAS 142 is expected
to result in us not recognizing amortization expense of approximately $1.6 million in 2003. We will test goodwill for impairment using the
two-step process prescribed in SFAS 142. The first step is a screen for potential impairment, while the second step measures the amount of the
impairment, if any. We will perform the transitional test within 6 months of March 2, 2002, in accordance with the provisions
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of SFAS 142. Any impairment charge resulting from these transitional impairment tests will be reflected as the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle in the first quarter of fiscal year 2003. We have not yet determined what the effect of these tests will be on our earnings and
financial position.

In June 2001, FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,
which addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result from
the acquisitions, construction, development and (or) the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. We are
required to adopt SFAS 143 in fiscal 2003 and we do not believe that the adoption of SFAS 143 will have material effect on our financial
position or results of operations.

In August 2001, FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets, (SFAS 144), which addresses the financial accounting and reporting for the impairment of long-lived assets. This statement
supersedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of and the accounting
and reporting provisions for the disposal of a segment of business of APB Opinion No. 30 Reporting the Results of Operations�Reporting the
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions. We are
required to adopt SFAS 144 in fiscal 2003 and we have not yet determined what effect, if any, the adoptions of SFAS 144 will have on our
financial position or results of operations.

Risk Factors that May Affect Future Results and Market Price of Our Stock

Factors Related to Our Business

We have a general history of losses and cannot assure you that we will operate profitably in the future.

We have not yet achieved profitability on an annual basis, and we cannot be certain that we will realize sufficient revenue to achieve profitability
in the future. Portions of our financial data are based on Cabletron�s financial statements. We incurred net losses of $30.7 million, $65.8 million
and $37.4 million during fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. We anticipate incurring significant sales and marketing, product
development and general and administrative expenses, requiring us to realize significantly higher revenue to achieve and sustain profitability.

Because the United States, Europe and Asia-Pacific are experiencing an economic slowdown, our ability to increase or sustain our revenues may
be limited. The events on September 11 in New York, N.Y. and Washington, D.C. and other terrorist attacks, as well as concerns regarding any
related conflicts or similar events worldwide, have increased the uncertainty in the U.S. These events have decreased our ability to project our
revenue in future quarters and may decrease the amount of funds our customers commit to information technology infrastructure spending. Any
reduction in or delay of capital spending by our customers due to the events of September 11 and recent economic, political and social turmoil
will reduce our future revenue and profitability.

Our exclusive focus on sales to service provider customers subjects us to risks that may be greater than those for providers with a more
diverse customer base.

Our customers consist of local exchange carriers, long distance carriers, Internet service providers, metropolitan service providers, content
hosting providers and cable operators whose businesses depend on the continuing demand for differentiated services by their customers. If this
demand does not continue or the Internet does not continue to expand as a widespread communications medium and commercial marketplace,
the demand for our products could decline. Our exposure to this risk is greater than it is for other vendors who sell to a more diversified
customer base. We believe that there are risks arising from doing business with service providers in
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these markets that may not be faced by our competitors in their relationships with corporate and other customers, including:

• any failure of a service provider�s service to its customers that it attributes to our products, whether or not our products actually failed,
which could lead to substantial negative publicity and undermine our sales;

• the low level of brand loyalty demonstrated by service providers, which may cause them to switch to another supplier that provides, or
that they believe provides, superior performance or cost-effectiveness;

• the introduction, or the planned introduction, of new products and product enhancements, which could cause service providers to
cancel, reduce or delay existing orders; and

• service providers that are heavily dependent upon financing, particularly from the high yield debt market, to build out their
infrastructure, who may decrease their infrastructure purchases if interest rates increase or if credit availability in these markets
decreases.

The occurrence of one or more of these events is likely to harm our operating results.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results are likely to fluctuate, particularly as we expand and if, as expected, our expenses rise, which
could cause us to miss quarterly revenue targets and result in a decline in our stock price.

We base our operating expenses on anticipated revenue trends. A high percentage of our expenses remain relatively fixed despite changes in
revenue, including marketing, research and development and general administrative expenses and expenses for employee compensation other
than sales commissions. This means that any failure to achieve anticipated revenues could cause our quarterly operating results to fall below the
expectations of public market analysts or investors, which could cause the price of our common stock to fall.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results may vary significantly in the future due to a number of factors, including:

• fluctuations in demand for our products and services;

• unexpected product returns or the cancellation or rescheduling of significant orders;

• our ability to develop, introduce, ship and support new products and product enhancements and manage product transitions;

• the timing and amount of non-cash stock-based compensation charges;

• our ability and our suppliers� abilities to attain and maintain production volumes and quality levels for our products; and

• write-downs resulting from other-than-temporary declines in value of our investments in equity and convertible debt investees.

Due to these factors, we believe that you should not rely on period-to-period comparisons of our operating results as an indicator of our future
performance.

We generally do not have binding commitments from our customers and if significant customers cancel, reduce or delay a large purchase,
our revenues may decline and the price of our stock may fall.

Historically, a limited number of customers have accounted for a significant portion of our revenues. For fiscal year 2000, British Telecom
accounted for 15% of our net revenues, Earthlink accounted for 14% of our net revenues, Metricom accounted for 12% of our net revenues and
Vitts Networks accounted for 11% of our net revenues. For fiscal year 2001, Telseon accounted for 11% of our net revenues. For fiscal year
2002 no individual customer accounted for 10% or more of our net revenues. Customers making large purchases from us are likely to vary over
time, due to changes in our product cycles, customer needs, competition or economic circumstances. Two of our former significant customers,
Vitts Networks and Metricom, have filed for
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bankruptcy and ceased operations and Tellabs has terminated its agreement with us. Although our largest customers may vary from period to
period, we anticipate that our operating results for any given period will continue to depend significantly on large orders from a small number of
customers. We generally do not have binding commitments from our customers. If any of our large customers cancels, reduces or delays
purchases, our revenues and profitability would be harmed because of our dependence on large customers.

Because the purchase of our products often represents a significant decision on the part of potential customers, we may expend significant
resources on potential customers without achieving actual sales.

Purchases of our products often represent a significant strategic decision and capital investment by our customers related to their
communications infrastructure and typically involve significant internal procedures involving the evaluation, testing, implementation and
acceptance of new technologies. This evaluation process frequently results in a lengthy sales process, often ranging from one month to longer
than a year, and purchases of our products are subject to a number of significant risks, including customer budgetary constraints and internal
acceptance reviews. During this time we may incur substantial sales and marketing expenses and expend significant management effort. The
length of the sales cycle, and the magnitude of our investment in the sales process, is more substantial for our service provider customers than it
would typically be with corporate customers. If sales forecasts from a specific customer for a particular quarter are not realized in that quarter,
we may be unable to compensate for the shortfall, which could harm our operating results.

We may be unable to expand our sales and direct and indirect distribution channels, which may hinder our ability to target multiple levels of
a prospective customer�s organization as well as our ability to increase sales and revenues.

Our products and services require a sophisticated sales and marketing effort targeted at several levels within a prospective customer�s
organization. Unless we expand our sales force and maintain high levels of marketing activity, we will be unable to increase revenues. Although
we plan to continue to hire additional sales personnel, competition for qualified sales personnel is intense, and we may be unable to hire the sales
personnel we require.

Our sales and distribution strategy relies on value-added resellers, original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, our direct and indirect
international sales efforts and our ability to package our products into a complete network infrastructure solution by working with other
technology vendors. If we are unable to establish new value-added reseller or OEM relationships, or if our OEMs and valued-added resellers are
unsuccessful in distributing our products, our sales could suffer. Because we are not a vertically integrated network infrastructure provider, if we
fail to maintain existing technology vendor relationships or to establish new ones, we will be unable to satisfy our customers� need for complete,
fully-integrated solutions and our business could suffer.

Certain of our customers rely on us to arrange financing for our products, which subjects us to credit and market risks.

Certain of our customers do not have or do not wish to commit the financial resources necessary to purchase our products without financing, and
these customers expect us to arrange their financing. These financing arrangements can expose us to our customers� credit risks and in the past
we have experienced customer defaults. Due to recent public market volatility, a number of our current or prospective customers may be unable
to raise funding through the issuance of their equity securities. This difficulty could result in an increased need for financing provided either by
us or with our assistance and an increased risk of customer default. At March 2, 2002 the Company�s guaranteed lease payments amounted to
$9.4 million. In the past, we benefited from Cabletron�s resources and credit in arranging financing for our customers. As a result of our
separation from Cabletron, we are a much smaller, stand-alone company, which could impair our ability to provide or arrange and support
customer financing. If third party financing were to become less available due to credit market factors, our ability to arrange third party
financing for our customers could be significantly limited, potentially resulting in reduced revenues.
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We purchase several key components for our products from single or limited sources and could lose sales if these sources fail to fulfill our
needs.

We purchase several key components used in the manufacturing of our products from single or limited sources and are dependent upon supply
from these sources to meet our needs. We have worked with NEC, Agere and LSI Logic to develop several of our key proprietary application
specific integrated circuits, or ASICs. These proprietary ASICs are very complex, and NEC, Agere and LSI Logic are our sole source suppliers
for the specific types of ASICs that they supply to us. We do not have a long-term fixed price or minimum volume agreement with either of
these suppliers. Should we encounter problems with NEC, Agere or LSI Logic, we may not be able to develop an alternate source in a timely
manner, which could hurt our ability to deliver our routers.

We base our purchasing decisions on a forecast of anticipated orders of our products, and if we miscalculate our needs or are not able to
obtain necessary components, our business could be harmed.

We use a forward-looking forecast of anticipated product orders to determine our material requirements, and if customer orders do not match
forecasts, we may have excess or inadequate inventory of materials and components. In the past, we have experienced shortages of some
components, resulting in delays in filling orders. We have also experienced delays in the prototyping of our ASICs during initial product
development, which in turn has led to delays in product introductions. If we cannot obtain necessary components, we may not be able to meet
customer orders and our business and results of operations could suffer.

We depend on a single contract manufacturer for all of our manufacturing requirements, and a failure by this contract manufacturer would
impair our ability to deliver products.

We outsource all of our manufacturing to one company, Flextronics International, Ltd., which manufactures our products in San Jose, California.
If the demand for our products grows, we will need to increase our material purchases and our contract manufacturing capacity with Flextronics
or add additional contract manufacturers. Our existing and future contract manufacturer may not meet our future requirements. We have
experienced a delay in product shipments from our contract manufacturer in the past, which in turn delayed product shipments to our customers.
We may in the future experience similar and other problems, such as insufficient quantity of product, which could materially harm our business
and operating results. The inability of our contract manufacturer to provide us with adequate supplies of high-quality products or the loss of our
contract manufacturer would cause a delay in our ability to fulfill orders while we obtain a replacement manufacturer and would have a
significant negative effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.

Substantially all of our revenues come from sales of our RS router family, making us dependent on widespread market acceptance of these
products.

Substantially all of our revenues result from sales of our RS router family. Continuing market acceptance of our products is critical to our future
success, and we are more dependent on the market acceptance of an individual product family than competitors with broader product offerings.
Factors that may affect the market acceptance of our products include:

• adoption of advanced routing and switching products and technologies;

• the performance, price and total cost of ownership of our products;

• the availability and price of competing products and technologies;

• brand recognition of the Riverstone name; and

• the success and development of our sales and marketing organizations and resellers.

If we fail to achieve and maintain market acceptance for our RS router family, our revenues may be harmed.
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The market for network equipment is subject to rapid technological change, and if we fail to accurately predict and respond to market
developments or demands, we will be unable to compete successfully.

The market for network equipment is characterized by rapid technological change, frequent new product introductions, changes in customer
requirements and evolving industry standards. Our future performance will depend on our successful development and introduction and the
market acceptance of new and enhanced products that address customer requirements in a cost-effective manner. We may be unsuccessful in
completing the development or introduction of these product enhancements or new products on a timely basis or at all. The failure of these
enhancements or new products to operate as expected could delay or prevent future sales. Developments in routers and routing software could
also significantly reduce demand for our product. Alternative technologies and customer requirements could achieve widespread market
acceptance and displace the technologies, protocols and service requirements on which our product lines are based. Our technological approach
may not achieve broad market acceptance, and other technologies or devices may supplant our approach.

If we are unable to deliver the high level of customer service and support demanded by our customers, we may lose customers and our
operating results will suffer.

Our customers demand a high level of customer service and support. Our customer service and support functions are provided by our internal
product support groups. We have recently transitioned all of these functions from a combination of internal and external support to our internal
customer service group, RTAC group, and field technical support group. If we are unable to manage these functions internally and satisfy our
customers with a high level of service and support, any resulting customer dissatisfaction could impair our ability to retain customers and make
future sales. We have also considered, and could consider in the future, using other third parties to provide certain customer support services. We
may be unable to manage effectively those third parties who may provide support services for us and they may provide inadequate levels of
customer support.

Our products are very complex and undetected defects may increase our costs and harm our reputation with our customers.

Networking products are extremely complex and must operate successfully with equally complex products of other vendors. These products
frequently contain undetected software or hardware errors when first introduced or as new upgrades are released. Additionally, the pressures we
face to be the first to market new products increases the possibility that we will offer products in which we or our customers later discover
errors. We have experienced new product and product upgrade errors in the past and may experience similar problems in the future. These
problems could result in our incurring significant warranty and repair costs, divert the attention of our engineering personnel from our product
development efforts and cause significant customer relations problems and our stock price to fall.

We have limited ability to engage in acquisitions and other strategic transactions using our equity because of the federal income tax
requirements for a tax-free distribution.

For the distribution of our stock by Cabletron (now known as Enterasys) to qualify as tax-free to Enterasys there must not be a change in
ownership of 50% or greater in either the voting power or value of either our stock or Cabletron�s stock that is considered to be part of a plan or
series of transactions related to the distribution. If there is a direct or indirect acquisition of our or Enterasys� stock by one or more persons during
the four-year period beginning two years before and ending two years after the distribution, it will be presumed to be part of a plan or series of
related transactions related to Enterasys� intended distribution of our stock. Unless this presumption is successfully rebutted, the distribution will
be taxable to Enterasys.

We have entered into a tax sharing agreement with Enterasys and Aprisma. This agreement requires us to indemnify the other parties if the
distribution by Cabletron of its Riverstone shares does not qualify as tax-free due to actions we take or that otherwise relate to us, including any
change of ownership of us. The process for
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determining whether a change of ownership has occurred under the tax rules is complex. If we do not carefully monitor our compliance with
these rules, we might inadvertently cause a change of ownership to occur, triggering our obligation to indemnify Enterasys and the other parties
to the tax sharing agreement. Our obligation to indemnify these parties if a change of ownership causes the distribution not to be tax-free could
discourage or prevent a third party from making a proposal to acquire us. The amount of any such indemnification would be substantial.

For the reasons described above, our ability to use our stock for acquisitions and other similar strategic transactions or for compensation for
employees and others is restricted. Many of our competitors use their equity to complete acquisitions, to expand their product offerings and
speed the development of new technology and to attract and retain employees and other key personnel, giving them a potentially significant
competitive advantage over us.

We jointly own with Enterasys some of our intellectual property, and our business could be harmed if Enterasys uses this intellectual
property to compete with us.

Intellectual property that relates to a family of ASICs used in both our RS router family and Enterasys� Smart Switch Router product family is
owned jointly by Enterasys and us. Enterasys is primarily a provider of local area network products for the enterprise market. There are no
contractual provisions that prohibit Enterasys from developing products that are competitive with our products, including products based upon
the jointly owned intellectual property. If Enterasys is acquired by one of our competitors, there are no contractual provisions that would prohibit
the combined company from developing products competitive with our products.

Our limited ability to protect our intellectual property may hinder our ability to compete.

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws and restrictions on disclosure of confidential information to
protect our intellectual property rights. We cannot assure you that any patents that we hold will protect our intellectual property or will not be
challenged by third parties. Other parties may also independently develop similar or competing products that do not infringe upon our patents.
Although we attempt to protect our intellectual property rights, we may be unable to prevent the misappropriation of our intellectual property,
particularly in foreign countries where the laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as in the United States.

We may be subject to claims that our intellectual property infringes upon the proprietary rights of others, and a successful claim could harm
our ability to sell and develop our products.

If other parties claim that our products infringe upon their intellectual property we would be forced to defend ourselves or our customers,
manufacturers or suppliers against those claims. We could incur substantial costs to prosecute or defend those claims. A successful claim of
infringement against us and our failure or inability to develop non-infringing technology or license the infringed technology on acceptable terms
and on a timely basis could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We continue to expand our international sales effort, and marketing and distributing our products outside of the United States may require
increased expenses and greater exposure to risks that we may not be able to successfully address.

Our growth strategy depends in part on the expansion of our international sales and operations. International sales increased to 23% of our net
revenues in fiscal 2000, 32% in fiscal 2001 and 52% in fiscal 2002. The international market for our products is less mature than the market in
the United States, and our strategy of selling to service providers that operate in the metropolitan area network may be unsuccessful on an
international basis. Operating internationally exposes us to risks such as longer accounts receivable collection cycles, difficulties in staffing and
managing operations across disparate geographic areas and tariffs, export controls and
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other trade barriers. We conduct our international sales in either U.S. dollars or local currencies and a change in the value of the U.S. dollar
relative to foreign currencies could make our products less competitive in international markets. We are also subject to fluctuations in exchange
rates between the U.S. dollar and the particular local currency. We may determine to engage in hedging transactions to minimize the risk of
fluctuations, and if we are not successful in managing hedging transactions, we could incur losses.

If we fail to address the strain on our resources caused by our growth or if we are unable to attract and retain qualified personnel, we may
not be able to achieve our objectives and our business could be harmed.

We have experienced a period of rapid growth and expansion, which has placed, and continues to place, a significant strain on our management,
operational and financial resources. From February 28, 1999 to March 2, 2002, the number of our employees increased from 163 to 525. Our
management team has only been recently formed and has had limited experience managing rapidly growing companies. Our success depends to
a significant degree upon the continued contributions of our key management, engineering, sales and marketing, customer support and
manufacturing personnel, many of whom would be difficult to replace. In particular, we believe that our future success is highly dependent on
Romulus Pereira, our president and chief executive officer.

We believe our future success also depends on our ability to attract and retain highly skilled managerial, engineering, sales and marketing,
finance, customer support and manufacturing personnel. Competition for these personnel is intense, especially in the San Francisco bay area, and
we have had difficulty hiring employees in the time frame we desire, particularly software and hardware engineers. We may be unsuccessful in
attracting and retaining personnel. The loss of the services of any of our key personnel, the inability to attract or retain qualified personnel in the
future or delays in hiring required personnel, particularly engineers and sales personnel, could make it difficult for us to manage our business
and meet key objectives, such as timely product introductions.

We rely on independent service providers to supply certain of our back-office functions, and if they fail to deliver adequate services, our
business will suffer.

We rely on service providers to supply us with many of our operational and back-office functions, including human resources applications,
enterprise resource management applications and customer relationship management applications. Although these functions are critical to our
business, we neither own the software that performs these functions nor, in some cases, the hardware on which these programs and our data
reside. If there is a significant degradation or failure in service, we may be unable to quickly and cost-effectively transition to other service
providers or provide the necessary functionality ourselves and our business could be disrupted.

We face risks associated with our strategic investments and may not realize the anticipated benefits of such investments.

In order to establish relationships with companies in markets consistent with our long-term strategic direction, we have invested in equity and
convertible debt of private and public companies. As of March 2, 2002, the fair market value of these investments totaled approximately $40.1
million. During the fiscal year ended March 2, 2002, sales to these strategic investee companies represented 16.2% of net revenues, with sales to
no one investee company exceeding 5.0% of net revenues. Additionally, sales to companies in which Cabletron held investments at the time of
the sales represented 5.5% of net revenues.

We plan to continue to make strategic investments in the future. However, we may not realize in full the anticipated benefits of our current and
future strategic investments. The companies in which we invest may not make, may reduce or may terminate product purchases from us. We
may lose all or a portion of the amount invested. We assess the fair value of our strategic investments quarterly and may be required to record
impairment charges against our strategic investments. During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended March 2, 2002, certain private
companies in which we held investments were experiencing financial declines and were not likely to be able to raise capital to continue
operations. As a result, we determined that investments in these
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investees had declined in fair market value on an other-than-temporary basis and accordingly recorded an impairment charge of $22.1 million
against strategic investments. Factors we consider important that could trigger an impairment charge include the likelihood that the related
company would have insufficient cash flows to operate for the next twelve months, significant changes in the operating performance or
operating model, and/or changes in market conditions. If we determine to reduce the carrying value of one of our investments, such a reduction
could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Factors Related to Our Industry

Intense competition in the market for network equipment could prevent us from increasing revenues and sustaining profitability.

The market for network equipment is very competitive and has historically been dominated by Cisco Systems. Other principal competitors
include established companies such as Extreme Networks, Inc., Foundry Networks, Inc., Juniper Networks, Inc., Nortel Networks Corporation
and other smaller public and private companies. These competitors may have developed or could in the future develop new technologies that
compete with our products or even make our products obsolete. Consolidation in our industry is occurring and is likely to continue. Future
acquisitions by, and mergers among, our competitors and potential competitors could expand their product offerings and accelerate their
development of new technologies, providing them with a competitive advantage.

Many of our competitors have significantly more established customer support and professional services organizations and substantially greater
financial resources than we do. Many of our competitors also have much greater name recognition and have a more extensive customer base and
broader customer relationships and product offerings than we do. These companies can rely on their customer bases and broader product
offerings and adopt aggressive pricing policies to gain market share. We expect that competitive pressures may result in price reductions,
reduced margins and loss of market share, which would materially harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We expect the average selling prices of our products to decrease rapidly, which may reduce our gross margins or revenues.

Our industry has experienced rapid erosion of average selling prices. We anticipate that the average selling prices of our products will decrease
in the future in response to competitive pricing pressures, increased sales discounts, new product introductions by us or our competitors and
increasing availability of relatively inexpensive standard microprocessors that can perform some of our products� functionality. If we are unable
to achieve sufficient cost reductions and increases in sales volumes, this decline in average selling prices will reduce our revenues and gross
margins.

If our products do not comply with complex governmental regulations and evolving industry standards, our products may not be widely
accepted, which may prevent us from sustaining our revenues or achieving profitability.

The market for network equipment products is characterized by the need to support industry standards as different standards emerge, evolve and
achieve acceptance. To be competitive, we must continually introduce new products and product enhancements that meet these emerging
standards. We have had to delay the introduction of new products to comply with third party standards testing. We may be unable to address
compatibility and interoperability issues that arise from technological changes and evolving industry standards. In the United States, our
products must comply with various governmental regulations and industry regulations and standards, including those defined by the Federal
Communications Commission, Underwriters Laboratories and NEBS. Internationally, products that we develop may be required to comply with
standards or obtain certifications established by telecommunications authorities in various countries and with recommendations of the
International Telecommunications Union. If we do not comply with existing or evolving industry standards or
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fail to obtain timely domestic or foreign regulatory approvals or certificates, we will be unable to sell our products where these standards or
regulations apply, which may prevent us from sustaining our revenues or achieving or maintaining profitability.

Factors Related to Our Separation from Cabletron

Our historical financial information may not be representative of our results as a separate company.

Our consolidated financial statements are based on the consolidated financial statements of Cabletron, using the historical results of operations
and historical bases of the assets and liabilities of the Cabletron router and switch business contributed to us. The historical financial information
we have included in this annual report on Form 10-K does not necessarily reflect what our financial position, results of operations and cash
flows would have been had we been a separate, stand-alone entity during the periods presented. Cabletron did not account for us as a separate,
stand-alone entity before June 3, 2000. Our costs and expenses include allocations from Cabletron for centralized corporate services and
infrastructure costs, including:

• customer service;

• sales;

• information technology;

• distribution;

• legal and accounting;

• real estate; and

• treasury.

These allocations have been determined on bases that we and Cabletron considered to be reasonable reflections of the utilization of services
provided to or the benefit received by us. The historical financial information is not necessarily indicative of what our results of operations,
financial position and cash flows will be in the future. We have not made adjustments to our historical financial information to reflect many
significant changes related to our cost structure, funding and operations due to our separation from Cabletron, including increased costs from
reduced economies of scale, increased marketing expenses related to building a company brand identity separate from Cabletron and the
increased costs of being a publicly traded, stand-alone company.

Cabletron no longer provides us with administrative services, and we no longer use Cabletron�s operational and administrative
infrastructure. Our ability to operate our business may suffer if we do not successfully replace this infrastructure and these services.

Under a services agreement, prior to its distribution of our common stock, we used Cabletron�s administrative infrastructure and Cabletron
provided us centralized corporate functions, including legal, accounting, payroll and other services. If we are not successful in replacing the
services and infrastructure systems previously provided by Cabletron, or if there is a failure or significant downtime in our systems, our business
could be harmed. To successfully implement and operate our own systems, we must be able to attract and retain a significant number of highly
skilled employees.

We cannot rely on Cabletron to fund our future capital requirements, and financing from other sources may not be available on favorable
terms or at all.

In the past, our capital needs had been satisfied by Cabletron. However, following our separation, Cabletron is no longer a source of funds to
finance our working capital or other cash requirements. Financing or financial support from other sources, if needed, may not be available on
favorable terms or at all.

We believe our capital requirements will vary greatly from quarter to quarter. Capital expenditures, fluctuations in our operating results,
financing activities, acquisitions, investments and inventory and receivables
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management may contribute to these fluctuations. We believe that the proceeds from our initial public offering, our sale of common stock to
Cabletron in July 2001, our issuance of convertible subordinated notes in November 2001 and our future cash flow from operations, will be
sufficient to satisfy our working capital, capital expenditure and research and development requirements for at least the next twelve months.
However, we may require or choose to obtain additional debt or equity financing to finance acquisitions or other investments in our business.
Future equity financings may be dilutive to the existing holders of our common stock. Future debt financings could involve restrictive covenants.
We will likely not be able to obtain debt financing with interest rates and other terms as favorable as those that Cabletron could obtain.

The plaintiffs in Cabletron�s outstanding class action suit might seek to add us to this litigation or seek payment of any related damages.

Since December 1997, Cabletron has been party to an outstanding class action suit alleging that during the period from March 3, 1997 through
December 2, 1997, Cabletron released false and misleading information about its operations and that Cabletron�s accounting practices resulted in
the disclosure of materially misleading financial results. The plaintiffs� complaint does not specify the amount of damages, but if the plaintiffs
prevail Enterasys (formerly Cabletron) could be required to pay substantial damages. The plaintiffs in this matter might seek to involve us in this
litigation or, if they prevail in this litigation, might seek to recover damages from us, particularly if Enterasys has insufficient assets.

We face risks related to the pending formal SEC Investigation of Enterasys Network and certain of its affiliates.

On January 31, 2002, the Securities and Exchange Commission notified Enterasys that it had commenced an �Order of Investigation� into
Enterasys� and certain of its affiliates� accounting practices. This SEC investigation may cover periods during which Riverstone was an affiliate of
Enterasys. We have not been notified that we are part of the SEC investigation, nor have we received any inquiry with respect to the
investigation. On August 6, 2001, when Cabletron distributed all of its shares of our common stock to its stockholders, we ceased to be a
subsidiary of Cabletron and an affiliate of Enterasys. We have been operating with our management and board of directors since our IPO in
February 2001. At this point we are unable to predict what, if any, impact the SEC inquiry into Enterasys� prior accounting practices may have on
us. We could be required to take actions not presently contemplated, which could be expensive, divert management�s attention from other
business concerns and harm our business. In addition, the ongoing SEC inquiry into Enterasys may contribute to volatility in the price of our
common stock.

Conflicts of interest may arise because our directors and executive officers have ownership interests in Enterasys and Aprisma.

Many of our directors and executive officers have a substantial amount of their personal financial portfolios in Enterasys common stock and
options to purchase Enterasys common stock. Our directors also hold options to purchase stock of Aprisma. Conflicts of interest may arise
between Enterasys and us in a number of areas relating to our past and ongoing relationships, including tax, indemnification, intellectual
property and other matters arising from our separation from Cabletron, which is now Enterasys. These factors could create, or appear to create,
potential conflicts of interest when directors and officers are faced with decisions that could have different implications for Enterasys, Aprisma
and us. In our certificate of incorporation we have renounced any interest in business opportunities that are presented to Cabletron (now known
as Enterasys), its subsidiaries other than us, or our officers or directors who are employees of Enterasys or its subsidiaries other than us at the
time the opportunity is presented.

We could incur significant tax liability if the distribution does not qualify for tax-free treatment, which could require us to pay Enterasys a
substantial amount of money.

In addition to our liability under the tax sharing agreement with Enterasys and Aprisma under United States Federal income tax laws, we would
be jointly and severally liable for the Federal income taxes of Cabletron
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resulting from the distribution being taxable. This means that even if we do not have to indemnify Enterasys under the tax sharing agreement
because we did not take any specific action to cause the distribution to fail as a tax-free event, we may still be liable for any part of, including the
whole amount of, these liabilities and expenses if Enterasys fails to pay them.

Factors Related to Our Stock

Our stock price has been and may continue to be volatile, which could result in substantial losses for individual stockholders.

The stock markets in general, and the markets for high technology stocks in particular, have experienced extreme volatility that has often been
unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. The market price of our common stock has been volatile, and we expect that it
will continue to be volatile. This volatility could result in substantial losses to individual stockholders and holders of our convertible
subordinated notes.

Anti-takeover provisions could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us.

We have adopted a stockholder rights plan and declared a dividend distribution of one right for each outstanding share of common stock to
stockholders of record as of July 26, 2001. Each right entitles the holder to purchase upon certain events one one-thousandth of a share of our
Series A Preferred Stock for $115. Under certain circumstances, if a person or group acquire 15% or more of our outstanding common stock,
holders of the rights (other than the person or group triggering their exercise) will be able to purchase, in exchange for the exercise price, shares
of our common stock, and in certain cases, shares of stock of a company into which we are merged, having a value of double the exercise price.
Because the rights may substantially dilute the stock ownership of a person or group attempting to take us over without the approval of our board
of directors, our rights plan could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, or a significant percentage of our outstanding capital
stock, without first negotiating with our board of directors regarding such acquisition.

In addition, our board of directors has the authority to issue up to 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock (of which 200,000 shares have been
designated as Series A Preferred Stock) and to determine the price, rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, of
those shares without any further vote or action by the stockholders. The rights of the holders of common stock may be subject to, and may be
adversely affected by, the rights of holders of any preferred stock that may be issued in the future. The issuance of preferred stock may have the
effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of us without further action by the stockholders and may adversely affect the
voting and other rights of the holders of common stock. Further, certain provisions of our charter documents may have the effect of delaying or
preventing changes in control or management of Riverstone.

Item 7A.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk Management

Riverstone�s investments are made in accordance with an investment policy approved by the Board of Directors. The primary objective of our
investment activities is to preserve principal while at the same time maximizing the income we receive from our investments without
significantly increasing risk. Some of the securities that we have invested in may be subject to market risk. This means that a change in
prevailing interest rates may cause the principal amount of the investment to fluctuate. To minimize this risk, we maintain our portfolio of cash
equivalents, short-term investments and long-term investments in a variety of forms, including commercial paper, government and
non-government debt securities and money market funds. Our portfolio has an average life of one year as of March 2, 2002. We generally place
our investments with high credit quality issuers and, by policy, limit the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer or fund. Based on our
investment portfolio, an interest rate increase or decrease of 30 basis points (10% of our weighted-average interest rate as of March 2, 2002),
would result in an increase or decrease of approximately $1.1 million, respectively, in the fair market value of the portfolio. However, these
gains or losses would remain unrealized unless the investments were sold prior to maturity.

34

Edgar Filing: RIVERSTONE NETWORKS INC - Form 10-K

36



Our convertible subordinated notes were issued at a fixed interest rate and with fixed conversion rates and therefore do not expose us to the risk
of earnings or cash flow loss due to changes in market interest rates. However, the interest rate fluctuations impact the fair value of our
convertible subordinated notes and expose us to a risk of economic loss. We have performed a sensitivity analysis as of March 2, 2002, using a
modeling technique that measures the change in the fair values arising from a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in the levels of interest rates
with all other variables held constant. The analysis covers our fixed rate convertible subordinated notes and is based on our assumed overall
maturity of five years for the long-term debt. The discount rate used was based on the market interest rate in effect at March 2, 2002. The
sensitivity analysis indicated that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in the interest rate would result in a loss in the fair values of our
convertible subordinated debt of approximately $2.9 million at March 2, 2002.

Strategic Investments Risk

We have invested in the equity and debt of certain public and private companies to establish relationships with companies in markets that we
believe are consistent with our long-term strategic direction. The debt is generally convertible into equity securities of the companies in a
relatively short period of time from the investment. These investments are accounted for using the cost method and are classified in long-term
investments and other long-term assets. For these investments, at the end of each reporting period we review historical and projected financial
performance, expected cash needs, and recent funding events in assessing carrying values. These investments are inherently risky as our ability
to recover our investment in these companies is largely dependent on equity market conditions and the occurrence of liquidity events, such as
initial public offerings, mergers, and private sales. All of these factors are difficult to predict, particularly in the current economic environment.
We could lose our entire investment in these companies. To date, we have recognized $22.1 million related to the impairment of these
investments.

Foreign Currency Risk Management

The Company transacts business in various non-U.S. currencies, primarily the British Pound, the Euro and the Japanese Yen. The Company has
established revenue, expense, and balance sheet risk management programs designed to protect against reductions in value and volatility of
future cash flows caused by changes in exchange rates. The Company uses currency forward contracts in these risk management programs.
These programs reduce, but do not always entirely eliminate, the impact of currency exchange movements. Based upon our currency sensitivity
analysis as of March 2, 2002, a hypothetical 10% increase or decrease in the exchange rates of the British Pound, the Euro and the Japanese Yen
would increase or decrease our earnings by approximately $360,000, respectively.

Currency forward contracts that are used to hedge exposure to variability in anticipated non-U.S.-dollar-denominated cash flows are designated
as cash flow hedges. The maturities of these instruments are generally less than 3 months. The Company had forward contracts to buy and sell
foreign currencies with a U.S. dollar equivalent of $13.8 million at March 2, 2002. For these derivatives, the effective portion of the gain or loss
is reported as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders� equity and is reclassified into earnings in the same period or
periods in which the hedged transaction affects earnings, and within the same income statement line item. The ineffective portion of the gain or
loss on the derivative in excess of the cumulative change in the present value of future cash flows of the hedged item, if any, is recognized in
interest and other income, net during the period of change.

Currency forward contracts are used to offset the currency risk of non-U.S. dollar-denominated assets and liabilities. Changes in fair value of the
underlying assets and liabilities are generally offset by the changes in fair value of the related derivatives, with the resulting net gain or loss, if
any, recorded in interest and other income, net.

For currency forward contracts, effectiveness of the hedge is measured using forward rates to value the forward contract and the forward value
of the underlying hedged transaction. Any ineffective portions of the
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hedge, as well as amounts not included in the assessment of effectiveness, are recognized currently in interest and other income, net. If a cash
flow hedge were to be discontinued because it is probable that the original hedged transaction will not occur as anticipated, the unrealized gains
or losses would be reclassified into earnings. Subsequent gains or losses on the related derivative instrument would be recognized in income in
each period until the instrument matures, is terminated or is sold.

During 2002, the portion of hedging instruments� net losses excluded from the assessment of effectiveness and the ineffective portions of hedges
had a $34,000 impact on earnings for either cash flow or fair value hedges. No cash flow hedges were discontinued as a result of forecasted
transactions that did not occur.

The net realized and unrealized gain from accounts receivable hedges included in other income and other comprehensive income at March 2,
2002 was $438,000 and zero respectively, before tax. The realized and unrealized amounts will fluctuate based on changes in the fair value of
open contracts at the end of each reporting period. As of March 2, 2002, the Company had future contracts with a cost basis of $13.8 million and
an estimated fair value of $13.8 million.

Sales of Accounts Receivables

Beginning in fiscal 2002, the Company sold trade accounts receivables to an unrelated finance entity, with limited recourse. The Company
accounts for the transfer of accounts receivables in accordance with SFAS No. 140, �Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets
and Extinguishments of Liabilities�A Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125.� According to the accounts receivable sale agreements, the
Company maintains the servicing of these receivables. In fiscal year 2002, the Company sold approximately $22.6 million in receivables. The
net cash flow from the sale of receivables in any given period represents the discount on sales and is recorded as interest expense. The discount
was approximately $1.4 million in fiscal 2002. At March 2, 2002, $11.5 million in sold trade accounts receivable remained outstanding. In
conjunction with the accounts receivable sale agreements, the Company provides deposits to the finance entity. At March 2, 2002, the Company
had a deposit of $1.9 million with the finance entity.

36

Edgar Filing: RIVERSTONE NETWORKS INC - Form 10-K

38



ITEM 8.    Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data            

RIVERSTONE NETWORKS, INC.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page(s)

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets�March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001     38

Consolidated Statements of Operations�Years ended March 2, 2002, March 3, 2001 and February 29, 2000
39

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows�Years ended March 2, 2002, March 3, 2001 and February 29, 2000
40

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity�Years ended March 2, 2002, March 3, 2001 and February 29, 2000
41

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 42

Reports of Independent Auditors 68

Supplementary Financial Data (unaudited) 70

Schedule II�Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 71

37

Edgar Filing: RIVERSTONE NETWORKS INC - Form 10-K

39



RIVERSTONE NETWORKS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

March 2,
2002

March 3,
2001

Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 123,095 $ 136,765
Cash due from parent �  31,184
Short-term investments 160,779 21,540
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts ($7,102 and $3,371 at March 2, 2002 and March 3,
2001, respectively) 42,535 29,891
Accounts receivable from related parties �  1,241
Inventories 20,155 11,169
Due from employees and officers 636 374
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 12,537 9,384

Total current assets 359,737 241,548

Due from employees and officers, long-term �  600
Property and equipment, net 22,508 14,020
Intangible and other long-term assets, net 42,281 7,875
Long-term investments 187,095 �  

Total assets $ 611,621 $ 264,043

Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
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